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SUBJECT: 	 Audit Report on the Joint Logistics Systems Center's Financial Statements for 
FY 1993 (Report No. 94-147) 

We are providing this report for your information and use, and for use by Congress. 
Financial statement audits are required by the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990. We 
reviewed the fairness of financial statements and the adequacy of internal controls and 
compliance with laws and regulations. Comments on a draft of this report were considered in 
preparing the final report. 

We are disclaiming an opinion on the FY 1993 financial statements because the 
accounting systems in place, as recognized by the Joint Logistics Systems Center in its 
management representation letter, were not adequate to provide the needed information to 
prepare the financial statements. Additionally, significant deficiencies in the internal control 
structure and noncompliance with required laws and regulations added to our inability to 
express an opinion. The recommendations in our audit report addressing the Internal 
Management Control Program and financial management procedures would also apply to a 
Joint Logistics Systems Center successor organization. 

DoD Directive 7650.3 requires that all audit recommendations be resolved promptly. 
Therefore, the Commander, Joint Logistics Systems Center, must provide comments on the 
unresolved recommendations by August 23, 1994. Those comments should indicate either 
concurrence or nonconcurrence with each recommendation addressed to you. If you concur, 
describe the corrective actions taken or planned, the completion dates for actions already 
taken, and the estimated dates for completion of planned actions. If you nonconcur, state your 
specific reasons for each nonconcurrence. If appropriate, you may propose alternative 
methods for accomplishing desired improvements. 

The courtesies extended to the audit staff are appreciated. If you have any questions 
about this audit report, please contact Mr. Charles Hoeger, Audit Program Director, in our 
Philadelphia Office, at (215) 737-3881 (DSN 444-3881) or Mr. John Issel, Audit Project 
Manager, in our Columbus Office, at (614) 337-8009. The distribution of this report is in Part 
V, Appendix B. The audit team members are listed on the inside back cover. 

Mi-J&L-. 
Robert J. Lieberman 

Assistant Inspector General 
for Auditing 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


Introduction. The Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990 requires the annual 
preparation and audit of financial statements for revolving fund activities, such as the 
Joint Logistics Systems Center (JLSC), a corporate business area within the Defense 
Business Operations Fund. The JLSC was created on February 11, 1992, to implement 
integrated logistics business process improvements through management of the design, 
development, integration, implementation and maintenance of the logistics areas of the 
corporate information management effort. The JLSC operates under the authority and 
direction of the Deputy Under Secretary of Defense for Logistics. In March 1994, the 
Deputy Under Secretary of Defense for Logistics proposed disestablishing JLSC and 
establishing a Logistics Standard Systems Joint Program Office to manage the depot 
maintenance and materiel management programs. 

Objectives, Scope and Methodology. The initial audit objectives were to determine 
whether the FY 1993 financial statements for the JLSC were presented fairly in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for Federal agencies. Based 
on our survey, we concluded that we could not provide an opinion on JLSC' s financial 
statements as a whole and we revised our objectives to address the reasonableness of 
JLSC' s property, plant, and equipment account and its use of and control over 
resources provided in its capital and operating budgets and the effect on the financial 
statements. 

Our examination concentrated on the $266.4 million reported for the property, plant, 
and equipment account because the account represented 99. 8 percent of JLSC' s positive 
asset balances and 94 percent of JLSC 's expended funds. 

We also evaluated the adequacy of JLSC's internal control structure, assessed 
compliance with laws and regulations that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements, and evaluated the usefulness of the information presented in the financial 
statements. 

The Joint Logistics Systems Center's FY 1993 financial statements were received by 
the Inspector General, DoD, on March 15, 1994. 

Independent Auditor's Opinion. We are disclaiming an opinion on the FY 1993 
financial statements because the accounting systems in place, as recognized by the Joint 
Logistics Systems Center in its management representation letter, were not adequate to 
provide the needed information to prepare the financial statements. Additionally, 
significant deficiencies in the internal control structure and noncompliance with 
required laws and regulations added to our inability to express an opinion. 

Internal Controls. Part II contains our report on internal controls. We identified 
material internal control weaknesses in that controls were not established to provide 
reasonable assurance that material misstatements in the financial records and statements 



would be prevented or detected in a timely manner. Additionally, JLSC did not ensure 
that project expenditures of its funds by central design activities were recorded in an 
accurate and timely manner. 

Compliance With Laws and Regulations. Part III contains our report on compliance 
with laws and regulations. The Joint Logistics Systems Center was not in compliance 
with DoD guidance on capitalization of assets and use of operating budget funds. The 
laws and regulations tested are listed in Part III. 

Usefulness of the Financial Statements. Because JLSC 's financial statements did not 
accurately portray its financial position, material inaccuracies in financial data were 
reported to higher authority and the usefulness of the financial statements was limited. 

Recommendations. The draft audit report recommended that JLSC establish an 
Internal Management Control Program; capitalize all applicable capital assets and 
disclose the extent of no cost usage for facilities and services; discontinue the use of 
operating budget funds on capital projects; and establish controls to ensure that capital 
expenditures are reported monthly and that yearend closeout procedures are effective. 

Management Comments. JLSC generally concurred with our recommendations and 
stated that it was working with the Defense Finance and Accounting Service to correct 
deficiencies. However, JLSC did not agree with the need to capitalize applicable assets 
in accordance with established criteria. The Defense Finance and Accounting Service 
comments were responsive. Management comments are included in their entirety in 
Part IV of this report. 

Audit Response. JLSC's comments to two recommendations were only partially 
responsive. Therefore, JLSC is requested to provide comments to the final report by 
August 23, 1994. 
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Part I - Independent Auditor's Opinion 
on the Financial Statements 



Independent Auditor's Opinion on the Financial Statements 

Introduction 

The Joint Logistics Systems Center (JLSC) was created as a corporate business 
area of the Defense Business Operations Fund (DBOF) on February 11, 1992. 
JLSC' s charter was to coordinate the development of software programs for the 
areas of depot maintenance and supply management. Its mission entailed the 
achievement of corporate information management goals for the DoD logistics 
business areas, that is, depot maintenance and supply management, by managing 
the design, development, and implementation of improved business systems. 
JLSC is located at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Dayton, Ohio, and has 
about 250 people assigned. Also, about 70 contractor personnel perform work 
at JLSC. In March 1994, the Deputy Under Secretary of Defense for Logistics 
proposed disestablishing JLSC and establishing a Logistics Standard Systems 
Joint Program Office to manage the depot maintenance and materiel 
management programs. 

JLSC operates under the authority and direction of the Deputy Under Secretary 
of Defense for Logistics and is provided technical and functional oversight by 
the Assistant Secretary of Defense (Command, Control, Communication, and 
Intelligence). The Comptroller of the DoD provides JLSC an annual operating 
budget funded through the DBOF cash corpus. The annual operating budget 
includes both a capital and an operating budget. The capital budget is used for 
capital projects, primarily for the costs of systems development in the depot 
maintenance and supply management areas. The operating budget is intended to 
cover the normal administration or operating costs of the JLSC. JLSC executes 
its mission of systems development primarily by issuing reimbursable orders to 
DoD systems design centers. Upon completion of a functional program, the 
capitalized system will be transferred to the using DoD components, and costs 
recovered through depreciation charges to system users. 

The Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-576) requires an 
annual audit of funds such as the JLSC. The Defense Finance and Accounting 
Service, Denver Center, provides financial services and prepares the financial 
statements for JLSC. The Defense Finance and Accounting Service, Denver 
Center, relies on the Defense Accounting Office at Wright-Patterson Air Force 
Base for inputs to the financial accounting system. Personnel at JLSC submit 
accounting data to the Defense Accounting Office, which in turn performs the 
financial system data entry, certifies funds, and processes collections and 
payments on behalf of JLSC. JLSC's financial statements are prepared by the 
Defense Finance and Accounting Service, Denver Center, based on information 
provided by the Defense Accounting Office and JLSC. However, the ultimate 
responsibility for the accuracy of the data in the statements belongs to JLSC. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on those statements based on our 
examination. 
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Independent Auditor's Opinion on the Financial Statements 

Scope and Methodology 

We examined the Principal Statements and the Notes to the Principal Statements 
of the Joint Logistics Systems Center as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 1993. The Principal Statements include the Statement of 
Financial Position, Statement of Operations, Statement of Cash Flows, and 
Statement of Budget and Actual Expenses. Also included are the Footnotes, 
Overview, and Supplemental Information. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in financial statements, including the accompanying notes. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. Our audit included an assessment of the reasonableness 
of JLSC's financial data reflected in both the FY 1992 and FY 1993 financial 
statements. We evaluated the procedures and controls that JLSC and the 
Defense Finance and Accounting Service, Denver Center, used to prepare the 
FY 1992 financial statements because the FY 1992 ending balances represented 
FY 1993 opening balances for JLSC's asset, liability and equity accounts. 
Also, since JLSC was established in FY 1992 and its first full year of operation 
was FY 1993, we concentrated our review on JLSC's use of and control over 
resources provided to it in its capital and operating budgets and the effect of 
JLSC's funds control procedures on its financial statements. We believe that 
our audit efforts provide a reasonable basis for our results. 

This financial statement audit was made from September 1992 through 
March 1994. The audit entailed the use of computer-processed financial data 
and reports. We determined the reliability of the computer-processed data as 
related to the property, plant, and equipment account. Organizations visited or 
contacted are in Part V, Appendix A. 

Auditing Standards 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States as implemented by the Inspector 
General, Department of Defense, and Office of Management and Budget 
Bulletin No. 93-06, 11 Audit Requirements for Federal Financial Statements, 11 

January 8, 1993. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Principal Statements are free of 
material misstatements. 

Accounting Principles 

Accounting principles are currently being studied by the Federal Accounting 
Standards Advisory Board (the Board). Generally accepted accounting 
principles for Federal entities are to be promulgated by the Comptroller General 
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Independent Auditor's Opinion on the Financial Statements 

of the United States; the Director, Office of Management and Budget; and the 
Department of the Treasury, based on advice from the Board. In the interim, 
Federal agencies are to follow the applicable accounting standards contained in 
agency accounting policy, procedures manuals, and related guidance. The 
summary of significant accounting policies included in the Notes to the 
Principal Statements describes the accounting principles and methods of 
applying those principles that management has concluded are the most 
appropriate for presenting the JLSC's significant assets, liabilities, net position, 
results of operations, cash flows, and reconciliation to the budget. 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

We are disclaiming an opinion on the FY 1993 financial statements because the 
accounting systems in place, as recognized by JLSC in its management 
representation letter, were not adequate to provide the needed information to 
prepare the financial statements. Additionally, significant deficiencies in the 
internal control structure and noncompliance with required laws and regulations 
added to our inability to express an opinion (See Parts II and III for details). 

Additional Information 

We reviewed the financial information provided in the Overview to the JLSC' s 
FY 1993 financial statements. Such information has not been audited by us; 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion on that information. 

Since the inception of JLSC in FY 1992, the Inspector General, DoD, has 
issued two financial related audits concerning JLSC. The audits are summarized 
below. 

The Inspector General, DoD, Report No. 93-134, "Principal and Combining 
Financial Statements of the Defense Business Operations Fund - FY 1992," 
June 30, 1993, stated that the addition of JLSC to the DBOF was in violation of 
the National Defense Authorization Act for FYs 1992 and 1993. Section 316 of 
the Defense Authorization Act prohibits the addition of other functions, 
activities, funds, or accounts of the DoD to the DBOF. The Acting Chief 
Financial Officer of the DoD disagreed and stated that JLSC did not represent 
new functions, activities, funds, or accounts; but rather, was a reorganization of 
activities already within the DBOF. The final decision was to retain JLSC in 
theDBOF. 

The Inspector General, DoD, Report No. 94-132, "Naval Design Activities' 
Management of Costs on Joint Logistics Systems Center's Orders," 
June 14, 1994, reported that Navy design activities continued to perform work 
for customers, including JLSC, that exceeded available customer funding, 
contrary to DoD and Navy regulations. Design activities of three major Navy 
commands incurred overruns of about $1. 6 million on reimbursable orders 
issued by JLSC. The Naval Audit Service reported similar conditions at a 
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Independent Auditor's Opinion on the Financial Statements 

number of those activities in June 1987 and again in March 1992. We 
recommended that Navy management officials review cost overrun reports to 
determine the full extent of customer overruns at its activities and take 
appropriate action against personnel in continued noncompliance with Navy 
direction. 

5 






Part II - Internal Controls 




Internal Controls 

Introduction 

We examined the internal control structure of JLSC for the year ended 
September 30, 1993. Management of JLSC is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, 
estimates and judgements by management are required to assess the expected 
benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. 
The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the following are met. 

o Transactions are properly recorded and accounted for to permit the 
preparation of reliable financial statements and to maintain accountability over 
assets. 

o Funds, property, and other assets are safeguarded against loss from 
unauthorized use or disposition. 

o Transactions, including those related to obligations and costs, are 
executed in compliance with laws and regulations that could have a direct and 
material effect on the consolidating statements, and any other laws and 
regulations that the Office of Management and Budget, entity management, or 
the Inspector General, Department of Defense, has identified as being 
significant for which compliance can be objectively measured and evaluated. 

o Data that support reported performance measures are properly 
recorded and accounted for to permit preparation of reliable and complete 
performance information. 

Because FY 1993 was JLSC's first full year of operation, performance measures 
had not yet been established. 

Objectives 

The objective of the audit was to determine whether material internal control 
weaknesses existed. Specifically, we determined whether the internal control 
structure was established to ensure that the financial statements were free of 
material misstatements. We considered the internal control structure in 
determining audit procedures that were needed in order to express an opinion on 
the financial statements. We reviewed JLSC's implementation of the DoD 
Internal Management Control Program. Our review included an evaluation of 
JLSC' s policies and procedures for capitalizing and reporting financial data on 
its property, plant, and equipment accounts; compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations; and use of funds provided in its capital and operating budgets. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States as 
implemented by the Inspector General, Department of Defense, and Office of 
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Internal Controls 

Management and Budget Bulletin No. 93-06, "Audit Requirements for Federal 
Financial Statements," January 8, 1993. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
Principal Statements are free of material misstatements. 

Results of Audit 

Reportable Conditions. Internal control weaknesses existed that we consider 
to be material and reportable under standards established by Office of 
Management and Budget Bulletin No. 93-06. Reportable conditions are matters 
coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or 
operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgement, could 
adversely affect the organization's ability to effectively control and manage its 
resources and ensure reliable and accurate financial information to manage and 
evaluate operational performance. A material weakness is a reportable 
condition in which the design or operation of the internal control structure does 
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities could 
occur. Such errors would be in amounts that would be material to the 
statements being audited, or material to a performance measure or aggregation 
of related performance measures, and not be detected within a timely period by 
employees in the normal course of performing their functions. Our 
consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all 
matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable conditions and 
would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered 
to be material weaknesses. 

The JLSC financial statements did not accurately reflect its financial position. 
Specifically, the property, plant, and equipment balance of $266.4 million and 
operating expenses of $29.6 million for FY 1993 were materially misstated. 
We attributed the inaccuracies to the lack of an effective internal control 
program, as required by DoD guidance, and weaknesses in controls over 
monthly capital expense reporting. 

Internal Management Control Program. JLSC' s failure to establish an 
internal management control program, as required by Office of Management 
and Budget and DoD guidance, contributed to the lack of controls to ensure 
accurate and timely financial data. JLSC had not designated an internal 
management control coordinator, identified assessable units, performed risk 
assessments of its units, developed a management control plan, conducted 
management control reviews, and identified and taken corrective actions on 
control weaknesses. Consequently, JLSC 's procedures did not readily detect 
and correct errors in its financial reports. We attribute the inaccuracies to 
noncompliance with OMB and DoD guidance and nonenforcement of JLSC 
guidance. 

Controls Over Expense Reporting. JLSC did not enforce its requirement that 
expenses incurred by other activities on JLSC projects be promptly reported. 
JLSC's "Financial Management Procedures Handbook," July 1992, requires 
that central design activities performing work for JLSC report, in accordance 
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Internal Controls 

with DBOF revenue recognition policies, on a monthly basis expenditures made 
on behalf of JLSC projects. The requirement for monthly reporting of expenses 
incurred is reiterated on each reimbursable order issued by JLSC to the design 
activities. As a result of inadequate reporting, the JLSC financial statements are 
inaccurate and the usefulness of the statements is limited. 

To illustrate, JLSC's Statement of Financial Position for FY 1993 reported 
$266.4 million for property, plant, and equipment. Footnote I to the FY 1993 
Financial Statements states that the $266.4 million consists of all software 
development costs incurred on JLSC capital projects. The $266.4 million 
includes $16.4 million incurred in FY 1992 and $250 million incurred in 
FY 1993. However, the software development costs reported have been 
significantly understated. For example, in response to our inquiries, 64 design 
activities told us that they had incurred expenses of over $140 million during 
FY 1992 on JLSC projects, versus the $16.4 million reported by JLSC for 
FY 1992. We were not able to verify the extent of the design activities' 
expenditures for FY 1993 because of the time required to verify expenditures at 
all activities performing work for JLSC and the congressionally mandated 
requirement to have our report to the DoD Chief Financial Officer by 
June 30, 1994. 

The usefulness of the financial statements for comparative purposes was limited 
because of the underreporting of software development costs, as reflected in the 
property, plant, and equipment accounts. The FY 1992 statements 
underreported software development costs by at least $123.6 million 
($140 million minus $16.4 million) and the reported FY 1992 asset balance was 
not corrected for the comparative financial statements prepared for FY 1993. 
As discussed above, the extent of underreporting for FY 1993 is unknown, but 
we believe it is also material because JLSC had not established effective controls 
for monthly expense reporting and yearend closeout procedures. 

Management Comments 

Comments from the JLSC Acting Director of Resource Management to the draft 
report were responsive. In response to our recommendation to establish an 
Internal Management Control Program, JLSC concurred and stated that it was 
working with the Defense Finance and Accounting Service to establish an 
internal control program within 1 year. 

JLSC nonconcurred with our recommendation to establish controls to ensure 
that expenditures by other activities on JLSC projects are reported monthly and 
to establish effective yearend closeout procedures to ensure that all project 
expenditures are accurately reflected in financial statements. However, JLSC 
stated it had sent numerous letters to both central design activities and to the 
Defense Finance and Accounting Service describing the requirement to capture 
the costs as developments occur. JLSC has briefed the Comptroller of the DoD 
on that problem several times and is receiving preliminary billing 
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Internal Controls 

information on all bills processed through the Defense Finance and Accounting 
Service, Columbus Center. Management comments are included in their 
entirety in Part IV of this report. 

Audit Evaluation of Management Comments 

Even though JLSC nonconcurred with our recommendation the actions taken are 
acceptable and meet the intent of the recommendation. 
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Compliance With Laws and Regulations 

Introduction 

We evaluated JLSC for material instances of noncompliance with laws and 
regulations for the year ended September 30, 1993. Such tests are required by 
the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990. The laws and regulations are listed 
below. 

Objectives 

The objective of the audit was to determine whether material instances of 
noncompliance with laws and regulations existed. Material instances of 
noncompliance are failures to follow requirements of, or violations of 
prohibitions contained in laws and regulations. Such failures or violations are 
those that cause us to conclude that the aggregation of the misstatements 
resulting from those failures or violations is material to the Principal 
Statements, or those whose sensitive nature would cause them to be perceived as 
significant by others. 

Compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the JLSC is the 
responsibility of JLSC managers. To ensure that the JLSC Principal Statements 
were free of material misstatements, we tested compliance with laws and 
regulations that may directly affect the financial statements and certain other 
laws and regulations designated by the Office of Management and Budget and 
the DoD. The laws and regulations tested were: 

o Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act of 1982 

o Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990 

o Office of Management and Budget Bulletin No. 93-02, "Guidance on 
Form and Content of Agency Financial Statements," October 22, 1992 

o Office of Management and Budget Circular No. A-123, "Internal 
Control Systems," August 4, 1986 

o "DoD Guidance on Form and Content of Financial Statements for FY 
1993/FY 1994 Financial Activity," January 12, 1993 

o DoD Manual 7220.9-M, "DoD Accounting Manual," October 1983 

o DoD Directive 5010.38, "Internal Management Control Program," 
April 14, 1987 

o DoD Directive 7200.1, "Administrative Control of Appropriations," 
Revised July 27, 1987 
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Compliance With Laws and Regulations 

As part of our audit, we reviewed management's process for evaluating and 
reporting on internal control and accounting systems as required by the Federal 
Manager's Financial Integrity Act (FMFIA) and the DoD Internal Management 
Control Program. We also reviewed and tested the entity's policies, 
procedures, and systems for documenting and supporting financial, statistical, 
and other information presented in the Overview to JLSC' s Principal 
Statements. However, our objective was not to provide an opinion on overall 
compliance with such provisions. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted Government 
auditing standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States as 
implemented by the Inspector General, Department of Defense, and Office of 
Management and Budget Bulletin No. 93-06, 11 Audit Requirements for Federal 
Financial Statements, 11 January 8, 1993. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the JLSC Principal 
Statements are free of material misstatements. 

Results of Audit 

Our audit disclosed several instances of noncompliance with laws and 
regulations that materially affected the reliability of the JLSC Principal 
Statements. In addition to JLSC's noncompliance with Office of Management 
and Budget and DoD requirements on establishment of an Internal Management 
Control Program, as discussed in Part II, Internal Controls, JLSC was in 
noncompliance with DoD criteria on asset capitalization and use of operating 
budget funds. Details on JLSC's noncompliance are presented in the following 
paragraphs. 

Capitalization of Assets. DoD criteria for capitalizing assets is contained in 
instructions issued by the Comptroller of the DoD, ti Capital Asset Accounting 
Guidance for Defense Business Operations Fund, ti July 21, 1992. JLSC did 
not comply with Comptroller of the DoD guidance on capitalization of assets. 
The only assets reflected in JLSC's property, plant, and equipment account 
were expenditures made by JLSC from its capital budget to reimburse central 
design activities for development of software programs. However, our review 
of JLSC's use of its operating budget showed that in FYs 1992 and 1993 about 
$4.7 million (23 percent) and $6.7 million (18 percent), respectively, were 
invested in capital assets such as computers, work stations, and software 
programs. The investments were inappropriately expensed in the fiscal year 
operations and not reflected on the property, plant, and equipment account. 
Assets purchased in both FY 1992 and FY 1993 met the criteria for 
capitalization. 

After we discussed the noncapitalization of assets with JLSC' s management, it 
acknowledged the following in the Management Representation Letter 
accompanying the FY 1993 financial statements. 
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Compliance With Laws and Regulations 

In retrospect, its equipment items with values greater than $25,000 
probably should have been capitalized and appropriately depreciated 
over five years. We believe, however, that the amounts were 
immaterial enough in relationship to our capital program that they 
could just as easily be expensed in both FY 1992 and FY 1993. In 
contrast, all of our (capital program) system developments, including 
the aforementioned equipment items which were expensed, will be 
capitalized by the components when deployed and depreciated over a 
useful life of five years. 

While management's acknowledgment of its failure to appropriately capitalize 
assets is a step in the right direction, action should still be taken to capitalize 
assets in accordance with guidance. Additionally, the guidance for FY 1993 
and prior years required the capitalization of assets valued at over $15,000 with 
a 2-year useful life, rather than $25,000 as stated above. 

The Comptroller of the DoD guidance also requires that DBOF activities 
capitalize and reflect on financial statements the value of real property assets for 
which they can substantiate preponderant use in the production of goods or 
services for its customers. The Air Force provided the JLSC, at no cost, 
substantial facilities and numerous services, such as contracting services. The 
use of Air Force facilities and services should, at a minimum, be disclosed in 
footnotes to the financial statements, to enable users of the statements to assess 
the effect of the free services on JLSC operations. 

Use of Operating Funds on Capital Projects. JLSC also did not comply with 
Comptroller of the DoD guidance on the use of operating budget funds. The 
Comptroller directed that all capital projects be funded through the capital 
budget provided to JLSC. However, about $820,000 in FY 1993 operating 
funds were used for several capital projects, not capitalized, and inappropriately 
expensed in current year operations. For example, JLSC approved the 
expenditure of about $300,000 to a contractor for an assessment of candidate 
ammunition and logistics management systems in support of the DoD 
Ammunition Migration System. The Ammunition Migration System is an 
approved capital budget project funded at $16.1 million in the capital budget. 

Comptroller of the DoD procedures provide for project costs being capitalized 
at completion, transferred to the using DoD Components, and recovered by the 
DBOF by charging the ultimate users for depreciation of the project. As such, 
it is essential that JLSC maintains an accurate accounting of costs of individual 
projects and uses only appropriate funds. 

Management Comments 

The Defense Finance and Accounting Service's comments were responsive. 
However, JLSC's comments were only partially responsive. The comments are 
summarized below and included in their entirety in Part IV of this report. 
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Compliance With Laws and Regulations 

JLSC nonconcurred with our recommendation to capitalize all applicable capital 
assets in accordance with established criteria, and stated that it was cognizant of 
the DoD accounting policy for capital assets. It was given operating budget 
funds for equipment purchases and believed that any costs benefiting only JLSC 
would be funded from the operating budget and therefore, expensed. JLSC 
believed that treating equipment as capital assets would result in double 
expensing of equipment depreciation by both the JLSC and the DoD 
Components. 

JLSC concurred with our recommendation to disclose the extent of no-cost 
usage for facilities and services, and stated that in future years, financial 
statement footnotes would disclose that information. 

JLSC concurred with the recommendation to discontinue the use of operating 
budget funds on capital projects and to ensure that costs incurred in the past are 
appropriately included in the capital project costs. 

JLSC disagreed with our recommendation to revise the FY 1993 Financial 
Statements to show the effect of capitalizing assets and, at a minimum, disclose 
in the footnotes to the revised statements the problems identified by the audit. It 
stated that the $10 million in asset acquisitions was minimal in relation to 
JLSC 1 s total budget; therefore, it did not believe that restating the financial 
statements was warranted. The Defense Finance and Accounting Service 
responded that it concurred, in principle; but that because neither the audit 
report nor management response to the audit was finalized before publication of 
the FY 1993 financial statements, disclosure of the problems identified by the 
audit could not be included. Any changes agreed to by JLSC will be 
incorporated in the FY 1994 statements. 

Audit Evaluation of Management Comments 

The issue of whether a capital asset is purchased with operating budget funds or 
capital budget funds is not germane to the issue of capitalizing assets that meet 
the DoD criteria for capitalization. JLSC 's capitol assets provide benefits over 
more than a 2-year period. Therefore, to ensure that appropriate costs of 
systems development are transferred to the DoD Components and ultimately 
recovered by the component through charges to systems users, the assets should 
be capitalized in accordance with DoD guidance and generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

Although JLSC concurred with the recommendation on discontinuing the use of 
operating budget funds on capital projects and ensuring that costs incurred in the 
past are appropriately included in the capital project costs, it did not provide 
comments on the actions that have or will be taken and the date of 
implementation of the corrective actions. We request that JLSC provide its 
planned actions and implementation dates. 
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Compliance With Laws and Regulations 

The Defense Finance and Accounting Service and JLSC response on disclosing 
the problems identified by the audit and the extent of no-cost usage of facilities 
and services in the FY 1994 financial statements rather than revising the 
FY 1993 statements is acceptable because the FY 1993 statements have already 
been published. We request that JLSC reconsider its comments to capitalizing 
applicable assets in accordance with DoD guidance. 
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.roint Lof!istics Svstems Center Comments 

• 
JOINT LOGISTICS SYSTEMS CENTER 

WRIGHT-PATTERSON AIR FORCE BASE, OHIO 45433 

MEMORANDUM FOR DOD-IG/AIG (MR TERRY ROHR) j l UAY 1~
555 OFFICENTER PLACE, SUITE 115 
GAHANNA OH 43230-5337 

FROM: JLSC/RM 

Building 15 

1864 Fourth Street, Suite I 

Wright-Patterson AFB OH 45433-7131 


SUBJECT: 	Draft Audit Report on the Joint Logistics Systems Center's (JLSC) Financial 
Statements for FY93 (Project No. 2LD-2021)- INFORMATION MEMORANDUM 

1. We have reviewed your proposed audit report and have the following responses to your 
recommendations: 

a. Recommendation: JLSC establish an Internal Management Control Program. 

Concur: In our first two years ofoperation, we immediately "hit the ground running" and 
have not yet implemented all necessary financial programs, including those relating to the Federal 
Managers Financial Integrity Act of 1982. We arc currently working with DFAS to establish an 
internal control program. We believe, however, to meet this requirement, it may require an 
increase in JLSC manning or require services from DFAS at a negotiated cost to us. With the 
proper manning, we believe we could have a sound, internal management control program 
implemented within one years time. 

b. Recommendation: JLSC should capitalize all applicable capital assets in accordance 
with established criteria. 

Nonconcur: We are cognizant ofDBOF accounting policy, July 1992, and fully 
understand that all capital assets acquired or developed with useful life oftwo years or more, 
capital value in excess of$15,000 ($25,000 in FY94), and budgeted for in the capital budget 
should be appropriately depreciated rather than expensed. JLSC, however, was given Qperating 
budget for equipment and not capital. We have always operated with the belief that any costs 
benefiting only JLSC would be funded from the operating budget and accordingly expensed. 
(Ultimately, when our developed AJS systems are fielded all development costs, including JLSC 
operating costs, will be depreciated by the receiving Component.) We believe that our treating of 
equipment as capital assets may result in double expensing of equipment depreciation by both the 
JLSC as well as the Components. This is a subset ofour questions concerning depreciation of 
AIS within DBOF, we have forwarded that to DOD(C). We have not received responses 
regarding these concerns. 
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We made a conscious decision with the approval ofDOD(C) to treat our relatively small 

equipment purchases as part of operations and accordingly expensed for operations. We believe 

this to be appropriate, in keeping with the accounting principle of materiality. Our equipment 

acquisitions over two years represents about $10 million in relation to a total budget over that 

period of$600 million, or less than 2%. Because of the relatively small amount and impact on 

our financial statements, we do not believe that restating our prior financial statements are 

warranted. 


c. Recommendation: JLSC should disclose the extent ofno cost usage for facilities and 

services. 


Concur: For future years, we will provide footnotes to explain that we are given use of an 

Air Force facility at Wright-Patterson AFB, having only to cover Base Operating Support costs. 


d. Recommendation: Discontinue the use of operating budget funds on capital projects 
and ensure costs incurred in the past are appropriately included in the capital project costs. 

Concur. 

e. Recommendation: Establish controls to ensure expenditures by other activities on its 
projects are reported monthly and establish effective year-end close-out procedures to ensure all 
project expenditures are accurately reflected in financial statements. 

Nonconcur: JLSC has sent numerous letters to both the developing activities and DFAS 
describing the requirement to capture incurred costs (billings) as development takes place 
(attachment). We have also briefed DOD(C), including Mr. Keavy, ChiefFinancial Officer, on 
the issue several times. This is currently a DF AS issue, only recently has DFAS-Columbus agreed 
to send us preliminary bills. In the last two months we have made great progress and are now 
getting preliminary billings infonnation on all bills processed through DFAS-Columbus (about 
70% ofour funds). For projects billed through other DFAS sites, we have not yet determined a 
conclusive resolution. With DFAS as the lead on this problem, we hope to come to closure on 
this issue within the next fiscal year. Finally, during preparation ofthe FY93 Financial 
Statements, we worked with DFAS-Denver to establish procedures to ensure inclusion ofall 
project expenditures at year-end by way ofan estimated accrual for any billings which had not yet 
cleared through DFAS-Denver. 

2. Our point ofcontact is Dennis Kahn, JLSC/RMF, DSN 785-0405. 

~/~C?~ 
SHERRY PARTEE 
Acting Director 
Resource Management 

Attachment 
Letters to JLSC MIPR Recipients 
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DEFENSE FINANCE ANO ACCOUNTING SERVICE 

WASHINGTON. CC Z0376·5001 

(Accounting) 
SEP 2 9 1993 

MEMORANDUM FOR DISTRIBUTION 

SUBJECT: 	 Joint Logistics system Center (JLSC) Capital Budget 
MIPR Billings 

By Off ice of the Secretary of Defense direction, all 
information system and business proc••• initiatives for supply 
management and depot maintenance buain••• areas, including those 
related to computer Aided Acquiaition Loqistica Support, are to 
be funded throuqh the capital Budqet of the JLSC. 

To maintain program execution visibility, JLSC must maintain 
separate sub-accounts for each line item in the Capital Sudqat
and accumulate costs by budget line item and project. JLSC is 
currently experiencinq unacceptable delays in obtaining billinq 
information when MIPR billinqs are proceased under cross­
disburainq procedures. JLSC ha• requested that activities bill 
them for all coats incurred by SF 1080 procedure. 

Althouqh we cannot mandate the use of SF ,!080 procedures, we 
propose use of an alternative method. For activities usinq 
cross•disbursin9 procedures, we recommend pre-billinqs be 
torwarded to JLSC. Under this arrangement, timely cost data is 
provided to JLSC. The pre-billinq•, as a minimum, should provide 
details on the deliverables bainq billed. 

Mr. David Moy is my point of contact for this project, and 

can be reached at OSN 327~~48 or (7031·607-1548. 
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FROM: 	 JLSC/RM 

1864 Founh Street, Suite 1 

Wright·Patterson AFB OH 45433.7131 


SUBJ: 	 Billing ofFY93 Costs Incurred on JLSC Capital Budget Military Interdepanmenta! 

Purchase Requests (MIPRs) 


TO: Distribution List 

1. In our 7 Jul 92 and 8 Sep 92 letters to you. we noted that we had received no billings on 
~Rs issued by JLSC for Automated Information Systems (AIS) projects under our purview. 
While we did receive billings from most ofyour activities after our 8 Sep 92 letter. we have not 
received any billings for costs incurred in FY93. The 21Jan92 DOD(C) Revenue Recognition 
policy letter (attached) swes "The percentage ofcompletion method ofrevenue recognition shall 
be used for ail cnd·product type orders that are expected to be completed in a fiscal year other 
than the fiscal year in which the order is started.• Funher. the c:usiomer funding the.order (in this 
case. the JLSC) shall be billed for revenue recognized at the end ofeach quaner ai a minimum. 

2. It is imperative that these billings be received in order to ensure that earnings are properly 
credited to your organization. A lack ofrecorded earnings gives the impression that no progress 
is being made in the development and implementation ofLogistics CIM projecu. It will be very 
difficult to defend future capital investment requirements in budget preparation drills ifwe cannot 
show execution ofcurrent programs. 

3. On MIPRs where eff'ort has continued in FY93. we encourage you to submit SF 1080 billings 
and supporting cost and production reports to the JLSC for costs incurred/revenue recognized in 
FY93 by 23 Jul 93 and to continue to submit billings on a quanerly basis in the future. Cost and 
production reports are required in order for the JLSC to properly accumulate all developmental 
costs for eventual depreciation. If work on these projects was completed in FY92, we need to be 
apprised ofthis so that Mll'Rs can be amended and closed out. 

~ We stand ready to answer questions on this matter and appreciate your immediate attention. 

Our point ofcontact for this is either Tim Brown or Dennis Kahn. JLSCIRMF. DSN 785.0350. 


I Atch 
DAU:: !... :·RICE DOD(C) Ltr. Zl Jan 92 
Dcp>.:t't IJ!rect\lr 
l~esourc:? Management 

OFFICIAL FILE COPY/RMFlT BrowrvSOJSO/I S Jun ~J/cnk/rcn"Pcd24Jun:JafiRMch:ani,?cs11C 11m:mprb1ltl 
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JOINT LOGISTICS SYSTEMS CENTER 
"AIGHT·PATTERSON AIR FORCE BASE 01<10 

15 JUN 1993 

FROM: JLSC/CC 
1864 Founh Street, Suite I 
Wright-Patterson AFB OH 45433-7131 

SUBJ: JLSC Capital Budget MIPR Billings 

TO: Director, Defense Finance and Accounting Service 
1931 Jefferson Davis Hwy, Room 400 
Arlington VA 22240-2000 

I am writing to ask your assistance in resolving a situation which is of utmost concern to the 
Joint Logistics Systems Center. Soon after the JLSC was deployed in March 1992, we began 
issuing reimbursable MIPRs on automated information system capital projectS under our purview. 
Reimbursable MIPRs were issued per the OSD(C) Ltr1 1 Apr 92 (attached). This letter requires us 
to maintain separate sub-accounts for each line item in the Capital Budget and to accumulate costS 
by budget line item and project. The letter ~er requires the Components to bill the JLSC for • 
authorized cosu incurred in accordance with DOD revenue recognition policies. 

2. In two subsequent JLSC letters, dated 7 Jul 92 and 8 Sep 92, we requested that the Components 
submit SF 1080 billings to the JLSC; we also have made this one ¢the requirements for accep­
tance ofour capital MIPRs. It is imperative that the Components submit to us their billings, along 
with cost and production reports, so that the JLSC can properly accwnuiate all developmental costs 
by project for eventual depreciation. In spite ofour requests. the majority ofour billings to date 
have been through -cross-disbursing" on "by-othCC- cycles. To date, ofthe Sl 15M in billings 
received, S66M. or 57% have been transmitted in this mamter. This situation is unacceptable 
because it delays recording of project development cosu into work-in-process sub-accounts. It 
also delays visibility to program execution and allows no review by JLSC prior to payment. 

3. We request your influence and support in encouraging the Components to submit billings 
dirccdy to us instead of 8 Cross-disbursing" ofour funds. Our point ofcontact for this is 
run Brown, JLSCIRMF, DSN 785-3030. 

l Atch 
OSD(C) Ltr, l Apr 92 

bcd1'j~~s R.k1i._,i\~) 
Sp£co'~l A-SD-f-r~\ 

'Fbi~o11~~011.¥ 
~\.l~sh. D.l. 2ti3ll/-looo1 
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FROM: JLSCIRM 0 I SEP 1992 

SUBJ: Billing ofFY 92 Incurred Coses 

TO: MIPR Recipient 

I. During the meeting held in Washington on 24 Apr 9:Z. it was agreed by ail components 
that they would prepare SF 1080 billings to coVC'C costs incurred for the period 1 Oct 92 
through 30 Apr 92 to comply with the guidance on revenue recognition. In our 
subsequent 7 Jul 92 lener to you. we noted that we had received no billings to date. In an 
attempt to clarify any contbsion you may be experiencing with the financial procedures 
prescribed. we endoseci a package containing the mos& peninem guidance on this process. 
As of this date, we have not received the billings requesced for the time period above nor 
have we received any billings for the third quamrfor tbnds sem to you on reimbursable 
MIPRs. F'mancial managemcm guidance from the OSD Comptroller swes that at a 
minimum the customer. which is JLSC. shall be billed and revenue recognized at the end 
ofeach fiscal year quarter. 

2. As you know. a lade ofrecorded eamings gives the impression.that no progress hu 
been made in the impfemenwion ofthe fogisdcs CIM l'fOgrllllS. Therefore, we must have 
infomwion on your commiunems, oblipricms and expenditures in order to assess the 
swus ofthese prosrmn(s). In aririitim, pt.. indicare die appropriaion in which you 
have accepted the DBOF fimding; e.g.. OaU& Reimbursable. Indumial Fund. etc. This 
data is duo to us by 18 Sep 92 in the formal amdled to mil Jetter. AJf'/ componem whidl 
has obliprional authority on a JLSC MIP1tis subjeci to having the amhority withdrawn it 
this infomwion is not provided by the dalerequested. 

3. This document does not replace the recurring requirement for SF 1080 billings u 
specified in the financial guidance. 

.~fGNED 
DALE L. PRICE 1Atch 
Deputy Director Format 
Resource Management 
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JOINT LOGISTICS SYSTEMS CENTER 

...._.,,D 
&rtWOf': 

RMF 

Billing ofFY92 lac:urred Cosu 

"'' MIPR Recipicm 

l. In the mclCliDg held iD Wuhingt.oa oa .24 Apr 92. it WU agreed by all componcms that SF 1010 
billings wuuJd bo prepared by the ccm~m&J covering com inc:umd for the period 1Oct 92 
through 30 Apr 92 and submia.cd to JLSC for n:vamo rccogaitioD. M ofthis dare we haw DDt 

n:ceiwd the billings. It is imporcul£ dm them oillinp be rccordcd ill order t.o ensure that your 
caminp ueproperty c:miitcci this fiscal yar. A lack ofn:cardcd c:aniiDgs giws the impressioa 
ttw no progress bas hem made iD im1JlanenmiM ofthe Loginica CIM projec:u. It will be very 
diBU:ulc t.o ddmi proposed capiW iiwcmnm& programs iD t.bc upcomiag budgcc preparaaon drill 
if'Mt CU DCIC shaw &11 rvcuOOll ofc:umalYIU' programs. 

2. We are c:mccrued 1hal this simalioa may rdlec:t c:cmiUsioa ow:r the pracribcd finaacia1 
proccdmes. We &Uy RCDgllizc the cijffiat!rim imoiveci ill npid impl"""'"'hcm ofsuch 
ccmpn:bemiw Dmaml dwigcs iD Iha waywa do busimm. AttM:bed is & package Mfttl!ining 
capics ofdie 111111& peninml guidaDcc gcMllliq the proc:ca. Wo srand _,to answer questiam 
arusisliDUfway'M cm. 

DALE L. PRICE 3Atch 
Deputy Dir=ar l. l Apr 92 DoD(C) ltr 
Raourcc M•m8"""'Df Din:crarue 2. 21 Ja 92 DoD(C) ltr w/at.ch 

3. 11 M&y92ASD(PWLS) ltr 

http:submia.cd
http:Wuhingt.oa
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JOINT LOGISTICS SYSTEMS CENTER 
WRIGMT·PATTERSOll AIR FORCE BASE, OHIO 45433.IA 

~ 
MEMORANDUM FOR DFAS (MR. DAYID MOY) 


TIIRU: ADUSD(LBS&ID) (MS. MARY ELLEN BEATTIE) 


FROM: 	 JLSC/ Building 15 

1864 Fourth Street, Suite l 

Wright-Patterson AFB OH 45433-7131 


SUBJECT: 	 Joint Logistics SystemB Center (JLSC) Capital Budget MIPR Billings 

(Your Memo, 29 Sep 93) - ACTION MEMORANDUM 


I . The JLSC continues to experience unacceptable delays in obtaining status information when MIPR 
billings flow through the cross-disbursement process. This issue was briefed to Mr. Richard Keevey, 
Principal Deputy, DOD Comptroller, as part ofthe JLSC execution review, 1 Mar 94. 

2. In your memorandum, you proposed the paying and collecting offices for the- JLSC development sites 
send the JLSC SF 1080 billings directly instead of using the cross-disbursing process. You suggested 
further, that for those who were unable to comply, the JLSC should, at a miflimum, be sent a pre-billing 
before disbursement takes place. We are only receiving about 5% ofour billings directly, and are not 
receiving any pre-billings for those processed through cross-disbursing. 

3. We ask that you request all ofour development sites' paying and collecting offices to send us a copy 
of the billing when cross-disbursements take place. In this maruier, we will be able to record the current 
cost billed against each project, while not causing any excessive workload at the various accounting 
offices involved. 

4. Thank you for your cooperation. Our point ofcontact is Dennis Kahn, JLSC/RMF, DSN 785-0405. 

JOHN R. " . ...:; ..... .;i;; 
Brig Gen ... <.AF 
Comman:.er 

Attachment 

DFAS Memo, 29 Sep 93 


ORIGINATOR m.B CXJl'r/RMF/D Ka.hn/2S Feb 9411Jb/f:bills294 
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COMl"TROLLER 01'" THF: OEl"ARTMEHT OF OEFtNSE 

WASHINGTON, DC ZOJOl·llOO 

JAN 2 1 1992 

MEMORANCCM ?OR ASSISTANT S!:CRZTARY OF Tll! ARHY (FINANCIAL 

MANAGEMENT)


ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF THE NAVY (P!NANCIAL 

MANAGEMENT)


ASSISTANT SECRETARX' OF TU AIR FORCE (FINANCIAI.

MANACEKEN'l' AND COMPTROLLER)

DIJlEC':OR, D!:?'ENSZ COMMISSAR.Y AGENCY 
DIRECTOR, Dt!'ENSE FINANC! AND ACCOUNTING SERVICX 
DlREC':OR, DEFENSE INFORMATION SYS'l'l:MS AG2NC? 
DIREC':OR, OE.P'SNSE LOGISTICS AGENCY 

SUBJECT: 	 Revenue Recognition Policy ror The oetensa Business 

Oper.ac:J.cna L'und 


The current Department of Defense policy allows industrial 
fund activtties to choose between two methods of revenue 
·recoqnition1 the completed-contract or percenta9e-ot-<:omplation
methods. Operatinq results reported ln the financial statements 
can vary considerably, dependin9 upon wnich method i• used. A 
recent Cener&l Accountinq Office report stated, •:n view ot both 
the Chiet 7inanci&l Officers Act of 1990 (Public La' l01-57G)
requirements that revolvinq funds underqo financial audits and th• 
DoD inte9ration o~ its industrial funds into the sinqle Oefense 
Business Operations Pund, it Ls eapecially important that all ?und 
entities use th• s.am• accountinq principle•• and M •••qenerally
accepted accounting principles require that income on lonq-term 
contracts be reco9ni:ad in th• period worx i• actually
perfcrmad.• 

~o •n•ure coaaiatency in the revenue recoqnition p0llcy for 
end-product type orders within OoD and to quarantee the operating
results reported in the financial statements are comparable
between buain••• area•~ the follcwinq OOD policy i• effactive 
i111111edia.te.,\.y. 

"The percentaqe-o!!-completion method of revenue 
·recognition snall be used for all end-product type
orders that are expected to be completed Ln a fiscal 
Y••r other than tne fiscal year in whicn ena order ls 
started. Revenue, under the percentaqe-of-completicn
mat:l:lod, may be reco9nized on a percenta9e of paysical
completion based.on visual observation or judqment of 
qualified personnel •. Aiternatively, vhen coata are 
1.ncurred on a relatively uniform basia over the ll!e of 
an order, revenue mAY be recoqni:ed as a percentaqe ot 
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incurred costs to total projected costs, !n all 
instances, the portion of work in process assoc1ated 
with the revenue recoanition shall be transfer:ed to 
cost of goods sold. The customer funding the order 
shall be billed eor the revenue recognized, or wnen 
progress payments have been previously billed, those 
progres~ payments shall be recorded to the appropriate 
revenue account. At a minimum, the customer shall be 
billed and revenue recognized at the end of each fiscal 
year quarter. In no case shall the total amount of 
revenue recognized and billed exceed the a1110unt of the 
order." 

Defense Business Operations rund business areas, not 
currently using the percer.tage-ot-completion method to 
recognize revenue will begin immediately to conform to this 
policy, Defense Business Operations Fund activities ;hall 
prepare their June l992 financial statements using the 
percentaqe-ot-completion method. 

ror service-type orders, revenue shall continue to be 
reco9nized At least monthly and considered as completed
servicoa rendered. 

Pleaae direct questions an this matter to Ms. Betty Pearson 
or Mr. John Glover, (70J) 697-8282. 

~~~y~
Principal Deputy Comptroller 
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FROM: 	 JLSC/RM 

1864 Fourth Street, Suite I 

Wright-Patterson AFB OH 45433-7131 


SUBJ: Execution of the Revenue Recognition Policy (Your Ltr. 6 Apr.93) 

TO: DOD(C) 

I. We recognize the need to expedite cash collections into Defense Business Operations Fund 
(DBOF) so as to prevent any current shortfalls. However, we cannot agree with your desire to 
encourage our development activities who receive JLSC reimbursable authority to cross-disburse 
our funds. This situation is unacceptable as it delays recording of project development costs into 
our Work-in-Process account for eventual depreciation by the business area. Additionally, it 
delays visibility to program execution and allows no review by the JLSC functional directorates 
before payment. We have already expressed our concerns under separate cover concerning 
response to the DBOF FY93 Collection and Disbursement Plan. 

2. Concerning any delays of funded orders, JLSC has not yet received all FY93 funding. Based 
on funding provided to us, however, we have executed the program in a pnadent manner. We 
have not taken any action which would result in an unnecessary delay in executing our budget. 

3. We have reiterated DBOF directed revenue recognition policy to all of our development 
activities and have no reason to believe they are not in compliance. It is difficult, if not 
impossible, however, to know if all of these activities arc progress billing our account at least 
once a month. The abundance of billings are currently cross-disbursed and we have no visibility 
to them for as long as six months after payment. 

4. We encourage you to make an exception for JLSC's developing activities and allow our local 
accounting and finance office to make all payments against our capital MIPRs. We have stated 
our problem to DFAS and hope to work with them to force this issue. 
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FROM: 	 JLSC/R.MF, Bldg. 15 
1864 Founh Street, Suite I 
Wright-Patterson AFB OH 45433-7131 

SUBJ: JLSC Requirement for a Cost Accounting System, Our Ltr, 23 Nov 93 

TO: 	 Defense Finance & Accounting Service 
Deputy Director for Accounting 
1931 Jefferson Davis Highway 
Crystal Mall 3, Room 409 
Arlington VA 22240-5291 

I. We believe that our requirement to have access to a cost accounting system is essential to our 
mission. The need for this support is immediate. We had hoped that a standardized cost system 
would be chosen and permission for its use by the JLSC could have been granted by now. 
Because this has not happened, we wish to proceed with our own solution. 

2. We have reviewed the Air Force Job Order Cost Accounting System O'OCAS II) and think it 
will satisfy our cost collection/allocations requirements. Our accountin~pport currently comes 
from the Air Force base level accounting system, and hu proven successful when interfaced with 
JOCAS II. We will proceed with our plans to use JOCAS ll and assume DF AS concurrence until 
hearing otherwise. Our points ofcontact are Dennis Kahn and Tun Brown, JLSCJRMF, DSN 
785-0405. 

SIGNED 

SHERRYL. PARTEE I Atch 
Chiet: Fmancial Management Division JLSC/R.MF Ltr, 23 Nov 93 
Resource Management Directorate 
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From: JLSC/RMF. Bldg. 15 
1864 Founh Street. Suite I 2 3 NO'! 1993 
Wright-Patterson AFB OH 45433-7131 

Subj: JI.SC Requirement for a Cost Accounting System 

To: Defense Finance & Accounting Service 
Deputy Director for Accounting 
1931 Jefferson Davis Highway 
Crystal Mall 3, Room 409 
Arlington VA 22:?.40-5291 

l. The notes to lbe JLSC's financial statements for both FY92 and FY93 disclosed that the JLSC 
is not in compliance with existing DOD and GAO Title 2 Accounting Standards due to the lack 
of a transaction driven general ledger. nus has been a matter of great concern to the JI.SC since 
it's inception in Much 1992. We believed that this problem would be corrected when the JLSC 
was directed to uansfer to the Defense Business Management System (DBMS) in May l993. 
This move was subscqucndy halted for an indefinite period. Since then,. we have received no 
funber guidance. 

2. From a conwrsation with Mr. Glen Williams (OFAS·DB'ANBD). we understand that DFAS· 
HQ is considering placing the JLSC, and similar activities, on a cost accounting system. probably 
JOCAS II. We fully support such a transition to an acceptable cost accounting system of your 
choosing. This may enable us to properly apply our direct. indirect, and general and 
adminisuative costs to all capital projects under the purview of the JLSC. 

3. Lastly, we would like to offer our assistance or input into your deliberations and planning for 
JLSC's possible transition. Our points of contaet are Dennis Kahn and Tim Brown. JLSCIRMF. 
DSN 785-0406f7. 

StGNEO 

SHERRYL. PARTEE 
Chief. Financial Management Division 
Resource Management Directorate 
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DEF~NS!: FINANCE .A.NO ACCOUNTING SERVICE 

1931 JEFFli:R•QN DA\'18 HIQHWAV 

AftL.INGTON. VA au.io-u1n 

JUH 2 mt 
DFAS•HQ/AD 

MEMO~ !'OR D:tREC!mtt, :C.OQIS'l'ICS StIPPOll D?REC'rORA'R 
IBSPBC'l'DR QJmDll., rlOD 

SU&nC1': 	 J:)oCIQ Draft Aw:U:e Report, "Joint Lo;istic::s Sy•ta=s
C.n'Car's Financial Stataments tor FY 1993," (Pro:t.ct 
No. 2LD•2021) 

We have ravined th• INJ)ject draft npcrt and hava a 
manaqement comment c:cmc:m:ninq racCllmllendation 2. WA i=eincw:, in 
p:-iziciple, with tha nocmmendaticzi to raviaa i:ha i'Y :LH3 
F:l.nazu:ial Sta.'l:amlml:ll to llhow 'l:h$ dfact cf t:ap:ltal.izinq ass.u, 
er a.t a minimum, cliac:l09a in footnotaa to tha ravisad. •t:at:emanta 
th.a pnmJ.au µtentif!ad by tba aucU:t. · 

'l'he DatenH P1nancr• lhd Aacowrl:inq lllnic. (DJ'AC) p~~
th• aacomrt:incz !Unct:iett and prapana tba Cb.id Financial 
O~fice2::a Act .t~nancal fta.tamrt:9 t~ 'th• Jc:b¢ t.oqaticsa
IY•'l:ama c.ntar CJUc:J • 'fh• dac:iaicm to C8Pita1ia• uaau mwrt. a made 1'y .nose. · At the ~ tha !'! 1193 tinanaial .U.t:aman.u 
vera ~i.shacl, JI.SC had. not dh'act:ad. th• aacoun~ entriaa tcm 
oapitaH1•t:ion ot anet•· stnce na.t.~ tha 1Jlcli1: 2:*part:. nor 
the manaqaant: ~ to th• audit we-a f.Uial.1.sad p1'icr i:c 
»U.blica.i:.ims oi th• n 19!3 fi~ancid Rateunt:a, Dr.AS ccul.d nC'C 
inolucla cliaclcsm:e ~ pi"Clblea ic!antifiad .by th• aUC!it. Any 
ounqu ~ tc by JLIC wll:L ~ in~atad in t:h• JY 19114 
•ta.tamant.. btim1"4 ccmplaticn datu DacaJ:iar u, 19514. 

MY S'Oint ef c:cntact =ncunil\9' thia m&naqament ClCIDent ia 
Mr. Ro.ftal Bcctha. Ka may ~ reached. at (703) 607-1581/1571 CZ' 
DSH 321•1Bl~/1.!S7B. 

.J 

r; . 
I I . 

~ Danial. '!'Urnwr v, .,. Deputy Ou r fr au.in.•• ~ 
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Part V - Additional Information 




Appendix A. Organizations Visited or Contacted 

Office of the Secretary of Defense 

Deputy Under Secretary of Defense for Logistics, Washington, DC 
Deputy Comptroller of the Department of Defense (Management Systems), 

Washington, DC 

Department of the Army 

Assistant Secretary of the Army (Research, Development and Acquisition), 
Fort Lee, VA 

U.S. Army Depot System Command, Chambersburg, PA 
Anniston Army Depot, Anniston, AL 
Letterkenny Army Depot, Chambersburg, PA 
Tobyhanna Army Depot, Tobyhanna, PA 

Commander, Watervliet Arsenal, Watervliet, NY 
U.S. Army Materiel Command, System Integration and Management Activity, 

Chambersburg, PA 
U.S. Army Strategic Logistics Agency, Alexandria, VA 
U.S. Army Armament and Munitions and Chemical Command, Rock Island, IL 
U.S. Army Missile Command, Redstone Arsenal, AL 
Project Manager, Joint Computer-Aided Acquisition and Logistics Support, Fort 

Monmouth, NJ 
U.S. Army Procurement Research and Analysis Office, Fort Lee, VA 

Department of the Navy 

Naval Air Systems Command, Washington, DC 
Naval Aviation Depot Norfolk, Norfolk, VA 

Naval Sea Systems Command, Arlington, VA 
Charleston Naval Shipyard, Charleston, SC 
Norfolk Naval Shipyard, Norfolk, VA 
Portsmouth Naval Shipyard, Portsmouth, NH 

Naval Supply Systems Command, Arlington, VA 
Navy Fleet Material Support Office, Mechanicsburg, PA 
Navy Ships Parts Control Center, Mechanicsburg, PA 

Headquarters, Naval Computer and Telecommunications Command, Washington, DC 
Naval Computer and Telecommunications Station, Jacksonville, FL 
Naval Computer and Telecommunications Station, New Orleans, LA 

Naval Surface Warfare Center, Crane, IN 
Naval Command, Control and Ocean Surveillance Center, San Diego, CA 
U.S. Marine Corps Logistics Base, Albany, GA 
Naval Information Technology Acquisition Center, Washington, DC 
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Appendix A. Organizations Visited or Contacted 

Department of the Air Force 

Air Force Materiel Command, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, OH 
Ogden Air Logistics Center, Hill Air Force Base, UT 
Oklahoma City Air Logistics Center, Tinker Air Force Base, OK 
Sacramento Air Logistics Center, McClellan Air Force Base, CA 
San Antonio Air Logistics Center, Kelly Air Force Base, TX 
Warner-Robins Air Logistics Center, Robins Air Force Base, GA 

Defense Organizations 

Headquarters, Defense Logistics Agency, Alexandria, VA 
Joint Logistics Systems Center, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, OH 
Defense Logistics Agency Systems Automation Center, Columbus, OH 
Defense Medical Support Activity, Falls Church, VA 
Headquarters, Defense Finance and Accounting Service, Washington, DC 

Defense Finance and Accounting Service-Columbus Center, Columbus, OH 
Defense Finance and Accounting Service-Denver Center, Denver, CO 

Defense Accounting Office, Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, OH 
Defense Printing Service, Washington, DC 

Non-Defense Organizations 

Department of Energy, Richland Field Office, Richland, WA 
General Accounting Office, Washington, D.C. 
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Appendix B. Report Distribution 

Office of the Secretary of Defense 

Comptroller of the Department of Defense 

Assistant to the Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) 


Department of the Army 

Auditor General, Department of the Army 

Department of the Navy 

Secretary of the Navy 
Assistant Secretary of the Navy (Financial Management) 
Comptroller of the Navy 
Auditor General, Naval Audit Service 

Department of the Air Force 

Auditor General, Air Force Audit Agency 

Defense Organizations 

Director, Defense Contract Audit Agency 
Director, Defense Finance and Accounting Service 
Director, Defense Logistics Agency 
Inspector General, Central Imagery Office 
Inspector General, Defense Intelligence Agency 
Inspector General, National Security Agency 
Director, Defense Logistics Studies Information Exchange 
Commander, Joint Logistics Systems Center 

Non-Defense Federal Organizations 

Office of Management and Budget 
U.S. General Accounting Office 

National Security and International Affairs Division, Technical Information Center 
National Security and International Affairs Division, Defense and National 

Aeronautics and Space Administration Management Issues 
National Security and International Affairs Division, Military Operations and 

Capabilities Issues 
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Appendix B. Report Distribution 

Non-Defense Federal Organizations (cont'd) 

Chairman and Ranking Minority Member of Each of the Following Congressional 
Committees and Subcommittees: 

Senate Committee on Appropriations 
Senate Subcommittee on Defense, Committee on Appropriations 
Senate Committee on Armed Services 
Senate Committee on Governmental Affairs 
House Committee on Appropriations 
House Subcommittee on Defense, Committee on Appropriations 
House Committee on Armed Services 
House Committee on Government Operations 
House Subcommittee on Legislation and National Security, Committee on 

Government Operations 
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Joint Logistics Systems Center Financial Statements for FY 1993 

OFFICE OF lHE COMPrROLLER OF THE DEPARTMENr OF DEFENSE 

WASHINGTON. DC 20301·1 IOO 

,'.~.:.. \ I ::i IS94 

MEMORANDUM FOR ASSISTANT INSPECTOR GENERAL FOR AUDITING, DOD 

SUBJECT: 	 Transmittal of u.s. Transportation Command and Joint 

Logistics Systems Center Financial Statements on 

FY 1993 Financial Activity 


The attached financial statements for the u.s. Trans­
portation 	Command, Business Operations Fund and Joint Logistics
Systems Center, Business Operations Fund on FY 1993 financial 
activity are submitted for audit as required by the Chief 
Financial 	Officers Act. 

My staff, and those of the u.s. Transportation Command and 
the Joint Logistics Systems Center, are available to provide 
assistance and information as you require in the audit of these 
financial statements. We will work with your staff to make the 
adjustments and improvements necessary. 

My point of contact on this matter is Mr •.Oscar G. Covell. 
He may be reached at (703) 697-6149 or DSN 227-6149. 

~~ 
Deputy Chief Financial Officer 

Attachments 
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JOINT LOGISTICS SYSTEMS CENTER 

OVERVIEW OF THE REPORTING ENTITY 


1. Messa2e from the Component Head. 

JLSC has bad several important occurrences during the past year. Among the most 
important of these were the following. 

• 13 Oct 93 OSD Memo 
•• Directed accelerated Implementation of Migration systems 
•• Systems to be selected within six months 
•• DOD-wide transition within three years 

• 10 Oct 93 DUSD(L) and (C3I) Memo 
··Rescinded direction to transfer Central Design Activities (CDAs) to JLSC 

• 24 Sep 93 DBOF Improvement Plan 
•• Decision to move JLSC from DBOF to Appropriated funds in FY 95 

• 20 Jul 93 DUSD(L) Memo 
•• Rescinded DOD(A) direction 23 Nov 92 to place JLSC under DLA Director 
- JLSC to report directly to DUSD(L) 

• 28 Jun 93 ASD(C31) Memo 
- Direction to transfer Central Design Activities (CDAs) to JLSC 

-9May93 
- JLSC's transfer to Defense Business Management System (DBMS) terminated 

-Mar93 
- JLSC directed to transfer to the Defense Business Management System (DBMS) 

• 6 Feb 93 DOD(C) Memo 
•• Funding provided to implement JLSC's migration strategy 
- Initial Operating Site (IOS) designated for Materiel Management Standard System 

2. Description of the Beportin2 Entity. 

The JLSC was established by the ASD(P&L) Memorandum "Management of the Materiel 
Management Corporate Information Management (CIM) Initiative," 7 Nov 91. The JLSC 
mission is to achieve Corporate Information Management goals for the DOD logistics business 
area by managing the design, development, implementation of Automated Information Systems 
(AIS) and facilitating development and implementation of improved business practices. Four 
overall requirements and objectives of the JLSC were to: 

• 	 Facilitate business process improvements. 
• 	 Identify and justify specific process improvements and supporting AIS, if applicable. 
• 	 Manage the design, development, integration, implementation, and maintenance of the 

logistics process system. 
• 	 Ensure functional and technical integration. 

Page 1 of4 
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Although JLSC is an activity within the DBOF, the JLSC does not have the typical customer­
supplier relationships found with other business areas. The JLSC centrally procures CIM type 
investments for the Supply Management and Depot Maintenance business areas within the 
DBOF. The nature of JLSC's mission is such that it does not routinely sell a product or service to 
its customers in order to generate revenue to offset costs incurred in the development of software 
projects. The JLSC's ultimate customers are the functional activities within the Components who 
will use the JLSC-sponsored capital investments to provide goods and services to their 
customers. JLSC's costs will be recouped to the Defense Business Operations Fund (DBOF) 
when software projects under its purview are transferred to the Components and depreciation of 
these systems commences. 

The JLSC's total Annual Operating Budget for FY93 was $338.5M. The Annual Operating 
Budget was comprised of the Capital Budget ($302.4M) and the Operating Budget ($37.lM). 
The Operating Budget was used to fund the day-to-day operations of the JLSC. The Capital 
Budget was used to fund AIS development and implementations, business process 
improvements, and component mission unique requirements in two logistics business functional 
areas: Depot Maintenance ($82.4M); Materiel Management ($220.4M). Additionally, the JLSC 
had unused FY92 DBOF Capital Budget authority available to carry over into FY93 in the 
amount of $121,266,515. The JLSC FY93 civilian workforce profile was as follows: 

Direct 151 
Indirect 46 
G&A .1l 
Total 250 

The JLSC funds automated information systems (AIS) and business process improvements for 
Supply Management and Depot Maintenance business areas with DBOF capital investment 
funds. As a result, the JLSC sponsors automated information systems development and 
modification initiatives which are performed by Central Design Activities (CDAs) or contractors. 
The JLSC issues reimbursable type funding orders to Component CDAs. Because most of the 
CDAs are in DBOF business areas, they arc on Unit Cost Resourcing and Fee-for-Service, and 
are subject to the DBOF revenue recognition policies. Non-DBOF CDAs are also funded by 
JLSC on a cost reimbursable basis. JLSC maintains separate subaccounts for each capital 
project. JLSC and DBOF CDAs must agree on a fixed price for completing the specified work. 

The JLSC operates as a joint center, with representation from the Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine 
Corps, and the Defense Logistics Agency (the Components). The JLSC's authority, scope, and 
funding are provided through DUSD(L). The JLSC financial and administrative procedures were 
derived from the Air Force's procedures. The JLSC, located at Wright-Patterson AFB OH is 
organized to efficiently perfonn its joint mission. roles and responsibilities. The basic JLSC 
organization is depicted below and consists of the following elements: 

Page2 of 4 
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Command 
Section 

Directorate 
for 

Corporate 
I nte ara tio n 

Directorate for 
Technical 

Integration 
Manaaement 

Directorate 
for 

Resource 
Management 

Directorate 
for 

Materiel 
Management 

Directorate 
for 

Depot 
Maintenance 

• 	 A Command Section 
• 	 A Corporate Integration Directorate to ensure the development of the logistics process 

system as a functionally and technically integrated system. 
• 	 A Technical Integration Management Directorate responsible for ensuring the logistics 

process system is developed as a technically integrated system. 
• 	 Two Functional Process Directorates responsible for improving the corporate logistics 

processes and managing the functional portion of the efforts required to design, develop, 
integrate, implement, maintain, and improve their portion of the logistics process system. 
Each functional directorate will develop and manage specific plans to meet its 
responsibilities towards achieving overall DUSD(L) policies and guidance, as well as goals 
and objectives and delivering the product to the customer. Currently functional directorates 
have been established for the business areas of Materiel Management and Depot 
Maintenance. 

• 	 The Resource Management Directorate responsible for coordinating requests for and 
managing funding, human and physical resources. JLSC/RM performs as the JLSC 
comptroller and coordinates JLSC performance measures and reporting. 

3. Program Performance Measures: Not Applicable for FY92 

4. Financial Performance Measures: Not Applicable for FY92 

5. Financial Mana~ment Challenges. 

The financial management issues, challenges, risks, and opportunities the JLSC will face 

Page 3 of 4 
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throughout the 1990s will center around how the JLSC will impact its customers in the DOD 
Components and other agencies with which it will interface. The JLSC centrally acquires capital 
assets on behalf of the DBOFs Supply Management and Depot Maintenance business areas. 
Most of the capital assets are acquired from Central Design Activities under contract with the 
JLSC. The JLSC performs its mission at the direction of the Under Secretary of Defense 
(Logistics). From a financial management perspective, the management and reponing 
requirements resulting from these organizational relationships will present challenges to the 
JLSC. A brief synopsis of the challenges are as follows: 

• 	 The JLSC will transfer ownership of the capital assets it centrally acquires to the DBOF 
business areas across the Components which will use the assets in their operations. The 
costs associated with acquiring the asset will be recovered by the DBOF through the 
depreciation expenses included in the business area's rates for its goods and services. The 
JLSC recognizes that the costs of the capital assets can directly affect the business area's 
cost performance and that in a workload competition environment, rates can be extremely 
sensitive. The JLSC, in conjunction with DOD(C), must determine a reasonable, fair and 
equitable method to derive the true cost of the capital asset and allocate the cost across 
those business areas which will receive the asset. 

• 	 The JLSC has relied on other DOD activities, specifically CDAs, to effectively and 
efficiently perform the work it sponsors. In FY94, JLSC plans to shift emphasis away 
from the CDAs and to issue funding directly to contractors to develop software for the 
JLSC. The JLSC has established customer-supplier type contractual relationships with 
the CDAs who will perform systems development and implementation work as specified 
by the JLSC. They must establish and implement procedures which will provide the 
management information needed to adequately control the CDA's cost, schedule and 
technical delivery performance. The procedures must provide the required information in 
a cost effective manner. 

• 	 The JLSC is accountable for its performance to its customer community, to the logistics 
functional managers in OSD, and to the DBOF managers in DOD(C). Financial 
performance measures must be established as a component of the JLSCs overall 
performance reporting to each of the constituents. Some of the measures may be the 
same, such as cost/benefits of JLSC delivered systems. Others will have more narrow 
scopes of interest, such as obligation and expenditure rates being of primary interest to 
the Comptroller community. The JLSCs challenge is in developing and implementing a 
process to efficiently and consistently measure and collect performance measurement 
information to support its reporting requirements. 

Page4of 4 
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Department of the Air Force la1 ot 2/2!5/941 
Detenae Bu1ine11 Operation• Fund - Joint Log11tic1 Systems Canter 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
Al Ot SEPTEMBER 30, 1Q93 
Un Dollar.) 

ASSETS 1993 1992 

1. Financial Be1ource1: 
a. Fund Balance• with Trea1ury CHot1 2) 	 (243,954,744) (14,287,287) b. Ca1h (Note 3) 0 0 c. Foreign Currency (Note 3) 0 0 
d. Other Monetary A111t1 (Iott 3) 0 0 
1. Inv11tment1, Non·F1d1ral CNote 4) 0 0 
f. Accounts Receivable, Net - Hon-F1d1ral 0 0 
g. Inventories Held for Sale, Net (Note !5) 0 0 
h. 	 Loana Bec1ivabl1, Net - Ion-Federal 

(Note fl) 0 0 
1. Property Held for Sale (Iott 7) 0 0 
J. Other, Hon-Federal <Note 8) 0 0 
k. 	 Intragovernmental Items: 


11) Accounts Receivable, Federal 
 404,736 7,667,1!56 
(2) Loans Receivable, Federal 0 0 
(3) Inve1tm1nt1, Federal (Note 4) 0 0 
(4) Other, Federal 0 16,364,!548 

1. Total Financial R1101U'c11 	 (243,!5!50,008) 9,744,UB 

2. Hon-Financial R11ourc11: 
a. R11ourc11 Tranaf1rabl1 to Trea1ury 	 0 0 
b. Advances and Pr1payment1, Hon-Federal 	 0 0 
c. lnventorie1 Not Held for Sale (Note !5) 	 0 0 
d. 	 Property, Plant and Equipment, let 

CHote 9) 266,392,049 0 
1. Other CNot1 10) 0 0 
f. Total Non-Financial Re1ourc11 	 266,3Q2,049 0 

~. Total Aa11t1 	 22,842,0U 9,744,UB 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 1tat1ment1. 
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LIABILITI,ES 	 111113 111112 

Funded L1abil1t111: 
a. 	 Account• Payable, lon•F1d1ral 0 0 
b. 	 Accrued Int1r11t Payable 0 0 
c. 	 Accrued Payroll and B1nefit1 2,•!17,000 0 
d. Accrued Entitl1m1nt B1n111t1 0 0

•• Lea11 Liabilit111 Clote 11) 0 0 
f. 	 Liabiliti11 for Loan Ouarant111 Clote e> 0 0 

Def erred Rev1nu1 • Ion-Federal 0 0•·h. 	 P1n1ion1 and Other Actuarial 
Liabiliti11 Clote l•> 0 0 

1. 	 Other Funded Liabiliti11, 
Uon-F1d1ral (Uot1 13) 0 0 

J. 	 Intragovernment L1abiliti11 
(1) Account1 Payable, Federal 	 32,811!1,!!811 e,1140,o•e
(2) Debt <Hote 12) 	 0 0 
(3) Deferred R1v1nu1 0 0 
m Other Funded L1abiliti11, 

Federal <lot1 13) 0 0 
le. Total Funded Liabil1t111 3!1,3!!2,!!811 e,1140,o•e 

!I. Unfunded L1abiliti11: 
a. 	 Accrued Leave 0 0 
b. 	 L1a11 Liabiliti11 Clote 11) 0 0 
o. 	 Debt Clote 12) 0 0 
d. 	 P1n1ion1 and Other Actuarial 

Liabiliti11 <lot• l•> 0 0 
Other Unfunded Liabiliti11 <Hotl l!U 0•• 	 0 

f. 	 Total Unfunded Liabilities 0 0 
e. 	 Total Liabiliti11 35,352,5811 e,1140,o•e 

IET 	POSITIOI 

7. 	 Fund Balance•: Clot• 18) 
a. 	 Revolving Fund Balances (12,510,548) 2,804,372 
b. 	 Trust Fund Balance• 0 0 
o. 	 Appropriated Fund Balance• 0 0 
d. 	 Total Fund Balance• (12,!!10,!148) 2,804,372 

8. 	 L111 Future Funding Requirement• 
(lotl 17) 0 0 

II. 	 lit Po•i tion (12,!110,548) 2,804,372 

10. Total Liabiliti11 and let Po1ition 	 22,8'2,0U 11,744,UB 

Th• accompanying notes are an integral part of these 1tatem1nt1. 
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Department of the Air Fore• 
Def en•• Bu1ine11 Operation• Fund • Joint Logi1tic1 Sy1t1m1 Center 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION> 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1QQ3 
<In Dollar•) 

}gg3 1QQ2 
REVENUES AND FIHAHCIHQ SOURCES 

1. Appropriation• Exp1n1ed 	 0 0 
2. levenu11 from Sale• of Good• 

a. To 	 the Public 0 0 
b. Intragovernmental 	 3!5,,3' 10,100,000 

3. Intere•t and Penalt1••· Hon-Federal 	 0 0 
l. Intere1t, Federal 0 0 
!5, Tax11 (Hot• 18) 0 0 
O. 	 Other levenu11 and. Financing Source1 

<Rote lQJ 0 0 
1. 	 L111 Tax•• and Receipt• l1turned to 

the Trea1ury 0 0 
8. Total l1venue1 and Financing Source• 3!5,'3t 10,100,000 

EXPEHSES 
Q. Program or Operating Expen1e1 (Note 20) 	 0 0 

10. 	 Coit of Good• or S1rvic11 Sold <Hot• 21) 
a. To 	 the Public 0 0 

2;,a31,oto 1,2Q!5,028b. Intragovernm1ntal 
11. 	 Depreciation and Amortization 

·o 
0 0 

012. 	 Bad Debt• and Writ1off1 
13. 	 Inter11t 

a. 	 Federal Financing Bank/Treasury 
Borrowing 0 0 

0 	 0b. Federal S1curitie1 
0 	 0c. Other 
0 	 0ll. 	 Other Expen1e1 (lot• 22) 

2;,o:s1,o•o 1,2Q!5,0281!5. 	 Total Expen1e1
10. 	 Exc111 (Shortage) of levenuea and 

Financing Source• Over Total Exp1n1•• 
(2Q,002,200) 2,80,,372Before Adju1tment1 

11. 	 Plu1 !Minu1l AdJu1tment1: 
0 	 0a. Extraordinary Items <Rote 23) 

b. Prior Period Adju1tment1 (lot• 23) 	 0 0 
18. 	 Exce11 (Shortage> of Revenue• and 

(211,002,200) 2,SOt,372Financing Sourc11 Over Total Expen••• 
0 	 010. 	 Plus: Unfunded Expense•

20. 	 Exce11 (Shortage> of Revenue• and 
(2Q,002,200) 2,SOt,372Financing Source• Over Funded Expen•e• 

2,SOt,372 	 021. 	 !et Po1ition, Beginning Balance 
22. 	 Exc111 <Shortage> of Revenue• and 

Financing Source• Over Total Exp1n1e1 (29,002,200) 2,80,,372 
U,287,281 	 023, 	 Plu1 (Minu1) Equity Tran1fer1 (Note 2l) 

(12,!510,!StSJ 2,804,3722t. 	 Het Po1ition, Ending Balance 

The accompanying note• are an integral part of th••• 1tatem1nt1. 
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Dtfartment of th• Air Foret 
Dt en11 Bu1in11s Operations Fund - Joint LoCisties Syst11111 Center 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE PERIOD EHDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1DD3 
Un Dollars) 

Cash Flows from Operating Aetivitiea 
1. 	 Exe••• (Shortage) of Rtvtnuta and Finan• 

eing Sources Over Total Expen••• 

1DQ3 1QQ2 

Joint Logistics Systems Center Financial Statements for FY 1993 

(2Q,1'!02,2011) 

Adjustments Afftet1ng Cash F-low: 
2. 	 Appropriations Expensed 0 0 
3. Dtertast <Inertast) in Aecounta 

Rtetivable 7,2112,421 (7,11117,1!51'!) 
4. Dtereast Cinereastl in Loan• Rtctivablt 0 0 
!5. Decrease Cinerease) in Other A•••ts 111, 3114 !548 Clll,31'!4,!548) 
II. 	 Incrta11 CDtertaatl in Account• 

I 

Payablt 2!5,Q!S!S,!543 
7. 	 Inertase CD1cr1a11) in Other 

LiabUitiH 2,4157,000 0 
8. 	 Depreciation and Amortization 0 0 
D. 	 Other Unfunded Exp1n1e1 0 0 

10. Other AdJu1tm1nt1 0 0 
11. Total ldju1tment1 !52,03Q,!511 ll7 ,OQl ,11!58) 

12. 	 let Ca1h Provided (Uaed) by 

Operating Activities 
 22,437,30!5 CU,287,287) 

Ca1b Flows from lon-Optratin& Activities 
13. Proceed• from Salt• of Inv11tm1nta 0 0 
lt. Proe1ed1 from Salt• of Property, 

Plant and Equipment 0 0 
1!5. Purcha1e1 of Inve1tment1 0 0 
11'!. Purchase• of Property, Plant 

and 	Equipment. 21'!1'!,3112,040 0 

17. 	 let. Cash Provided (Used) by 
lon-Operatin& Activities (2111'!,3D2,0411) 0 

The accompanyinC note1 art an intecral part o1 the•• 1tatement1. 
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C.&SJl PIOVIDEJ> (USEJ>J BT FIIAHCUL ACTIVITIES 	 UID:s 111112 

18. Appropri~tion• (Current Warrant•> 	 0 0 
111. Add: 

a. IHtOP&Uons 0 0 
b~ Tl'an•f•r• of Cash from Other• u . 28'7 '28'7 0 

20. Deduct: 
a. Witbdnwal• 	 0 0 
b. Tran•f•r• of Caab to Other• 	 0 0 

21. let Appropriation• 	 H,287,287 0 

22. Borrowing fro• the public 	 0 0 
23. !•payment• on Loan• to th• Public 	 0 0 
26. 	 Borrowing fro• th• Tr•a•Ul'y and the 

Federal Financing Bank ·0 0 
215. lepayment1 on Loan• from th• Treaauioy 

and th• Federal FlnanclnC Bank 0 0 
2a. Other Borrowtnc1 and lepayment• 0 0 

2T. l•t. Caab Pl'odd•d Cl1HdJ " 0• Flnanctna .&ativiti•• 	 1'.• 287. 28'7 

28. 	 let Cash Pl'ovided CU•edJ by Operating, 
lon·Operatln& and Financing Acltiviti•• (229, OST, H7J ( u. 287 ,28'1l 

29. 	 Fund Balance with U.S. THuury, Caab 
and For•i&n Currencr, BeginninC (1'.287. 28'1) 0 

30. 	 Fund Balance with U.S. '1'Jtea1ury, Cash 
and Foreign Currency, lndinC c2u. sis'. no (1',287,287) 

Supplemental Dl1cloaure of Caah Flow Information: 
0;u. Tot.al Intereat Paid 	 0 

Supplemental Schedule of FlnancinC and Inve•tlnC Activity: 
32. 	 Property and Equipment Acquired Under 

Capital Lease Obll&at.lon1 0 0 

33. 	 Property Acquired Under Long•term 
Financing Arrangement• 0 0 

36. Other Excbange1 of loncaab Aa1et1 or 
00LiabUltlH 

Th• accompany1n& note• are an integral part. of th••• at.atement•. 
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Department of the Air Force 
Detense Bu11ne11 Operation• Fund - Joint Lo&11tic1 Sy1te1111 Center 
STATEMENT OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1QQ3 
Un Dollar1> 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

Program Obl1Ution1 
!Jame (1) Direct Reimbursed Expenae1
Joint Log11Uc1
Sy1t.1111 Centel' 4!17,874,408 0 440,17Q,374 2D,t137,t140 

Totals 4!17,874,408 0 HO,l7Q,3'14 2Q,037,HO 

Budget Reconciliation: 

A. Total Expenses 2D,tl37,040 

B. Add: 
(1) Capital Aoqui1ition1 2tltl,3D2,04Q 
(2) Loan1 Dilbu1'1ed 0 
(3) Othep Expended BudC•t Authority 0 

C. Le11: 
(1) Depreciation and Amortization 0 
(2) Unfunded Annual Leave Expen1e1 0 
(3) Othep Unfunded Exp1n1e• 13,Q07,!IH 

D. Expended Appropl'iations 282, 122, 142 
E. Le11 Reimbur1ement1 35,434 
F. Expended Appropriation1, Direct 282,080,708 

The accompanying note1 are an integral p&l't of the•• 1tatement1. 
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NOTES TO 'tBE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR TBE JOINT LOGISTICS SYSTEMS CENTER 

FY 93 

Note 1: summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

A. Reporting Entity and Basis of Consolidation: 

The Assistant Secretary of Defense for Production and 
Logistics (ASD(P&L)), directed that a Joint Logistics Systems
Center (JLSC) be established effective December 31, 1991. The 
JLSC was established to implement integrated business process
improvements by managing the development, integration,
implementation and maintenance of the logistics areas of the 
Corporate Information Management (CIM) effort for Depot
Maintenance and Supply Management. 

The JLSC mission requires that it take a central role in 
the logistics functional area. The JLSC will facilitate, in 
conjunction with the functional communities, the identification 
of corporate business process improvements, and the appropriate
application of Automated Information Systems (AIS) and related 
technologies to maximize operational effectiveness and achieve 
cost savings. The JLSC will employ data standardization to 
support corporate logistics systems design, development,
integration, implementation and maintenance. 

The trial balance reports are manually prepared at 645 
ABW/FM, Wright Patterson AFB, Ohio for the JLSC. The 
accompanying consolidated financial statements of the JLSC 
include the fund balance with Treasury of $(243,954,744). 

The Defense Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center 
uses the Departmental OnLine Accounting and Reporting System
(DOLARS) to consolidate and prepare JLSC's financial reports.
DOLARS uses an Air Force unique general ledger structure. 

These Notes to the Financial Statements of the 
JI.SC are an integral part of the statements. See Defense 
Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center transmittal 
memorandum, dated March·4, 1994, for additional information. 
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B. Accounting Standardaa 

The financial statements are presented in accordance with 
the accounting principles and reporting standards contained in 
the Department of Defense (DoD) Accounting Manual (DoD 
7220.9-M). The following are areas in which JLSC does not 
currently comply with existing DoD accounting standards: 

(1) Chart of Accounts. JLSC has not implemented the 

standard DoD General Ledger chart of accounts. 


(2) General Ledger. JLSC has not implemented a true 

transactions driven general ledger system to provide a 

consolidated source of financial management information for 

either management or financial statement purposes. 


c. Ba•i• of Accountings 

Transactions are recorded on the accrual basis of 
accounting as required by the DoD Accounting Manual. Under the 
accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses 
are recognized when a liability is incurred, without regard to 
receipt for payment of cash. All interfund balances and 
transactions have been eliminated. 

Presently, JLSC funds are accounted for as a,DoD corporate 
fund using an Air Force stock fund chart of accounts. However, 
JLSC does not sell merchandise aa do stock fund business 
activities. The JLSC's cost will not be recouped to the 
Defense Business Operations Fund (DBOF) until software projects 
managed by the JLSC are turned over to the components and 
depreciation of these system commences. 

D. Busine•• Area Policy and Procedure•a 

Operations of the business areas are based on the policies 
and procedures that have been in effect for the stock and 
industrial funds. However, a number of management, accounting, 
policy, and procedural changes were implemented. These 
includes 

(1) Under a new policy, business budgets are segregated
into operating and capital budgets. Any investment in 

These Notes to the Financial Statements of the 
JLSC are an integral part of the statements. See Defense 
Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center transmittal 
memorandum, dated March 4, 1994, for additional information. 
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equipment, software, minor construction, and other management

improvements costing more than $15,000 will be funded through 

the capital budget and depreciated over its relevant life 

cycle. 


(2) The JLSC sets its pricing rates based on full cost 
recovery. This ensures that cost reductions made by JLSC will 
be passed along to customers. Prices are not changed during
the year of execution. 

(3) Under the auspices of DoD and the federal government,

the JLSC interacts with and is dependent on the financial 

activities of the federal government as a whole. Therefore, 

these financial statements do not reflect the results of all 

financial decisions applicable to the JLSC as though it were a 

stand-alone entity. 


B. Revenues and Other Financing Source•: The JLSC received a 
total PY 92 Annual Operating Budget of $425,300,000. The 
operating budget is $21,200,000 and the capital budget is 
$404,100,000. The operating budget was received in two parts. 
The first $10,100,000 was received from the Uniformed Services 
and the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) as reimbursable Military
Interservice Purchase Requests (MIPRs) for initial start-up , 
costs, on a one time basis only. Accounting for the 
reimbursable portion is in keeping with guidance from DoD(C), 
memorandum dated February 25, 1992. The entire $10,100,000 was 
completely billed to the Uniform Services and DLA as of June 
1993. All subsequent funding for the operating budget and the 
capital budget was provided to the JLSC in obligation authority
from the DBOF corpus. In FY 93, the JLSC received $37,100,000 
in operating budget authority and $302,400,000 in capital
budget authority. 

F. Accounting for Intra-governmental Activities1 Reference 
Note E, and Note 26. 

G. Accounts Receivable: As presented in the Consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position, accounts receivable include 
reimbursements receivable. During FY 93, the JLSC had federal 
accounts receivable of $404,736, no non-federal accounts 
receivable, and no allowances for doubtful accounts. Reference 
Note 25.(A). 

These Notes to the Financial Statements of the 
JLSC are an integral part of the statements. See Defense 
Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center transmittal 
memorandum, dated March 4, 1994, for additional information. 
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B. Other Federal Financial Resources: The FY 92 JLSC trial 

balance recorded $16,364,548 of capital expenditures in 

progress billings (reference line 1.k.(4) of the Statement of 

Financial Position). In FY 93, a Property, Plant, & Equipment 

account was established to include all software development 

costs. The $16,364,548 was transferred to this account. 

Reference Note 1.(I). The FY 93 balance for line l.k.(4) of 

the Statement of Financial Position is -o-. 

I. Property and Equipment: In FY 93, a Property, Plant, & 

Equipment account was established to include all software 

development cost. This account includes $16,364,548 of cost 

incurred in FY 92, and $250,027,501 of cost incurred in FY 93. 

Of the $250,027,501, $123,000,000 was disbursed in FY 93. 


J. Accounts Payable, Federal: The balance is $32,895,589. 

The increase of $25,955,543 in Accounts Payable in FY 93 is due 

to the fact that the JLSC was in operation for a full year in 

FY 93, and only one-half year in FY 92. Refer to line 4.j.(l)

of the Statement of Financial Position, and line 6 of the 

Statement of Cash Flows. 


K. Comparative Data: Comparative data are provided for FY 92, 

and FY 93 to provide an understanding of changes in financial 

position and operations of the JLSC. 


Rote 2. Fund Balances with Treasury, Cash, etc.: 

A. The JLSC does not maintain cash in commercial bank 
accounts. All DBOF cash balances are maintained at the 
corporate level, and not at each business level. Cash receipts
and disbursements are processed by the U.S. Treasury. The fund 
balance with the Treasury is $(243,954,744). The balances for 
cash and foreign currency are -o-. 
B. Other Information: The negative fund balance results 
because the .JLSC disburses capital budget funds against
development projects which will not be recouped to the DBOF 
until software is transferred to the Uniformed Services, and 
DLA and depreciation begins. 

These Notes to the Financial Statements of the 
JLSC are an integral part of the statements. See Defense 
Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center transmittal 
memorandum, dated March 4, 1994, for additional information. 
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Note 3. Other Monetary Assets: There were no transactions or 
balances reported. 

Note 4. Investments: No transactions or balances reported. 

Note s. Inventories: No transactions or balances reported. 

Note 6. Loans and Loan Guarantees, Non-Federal: There were no 
transactions or balances reported. 

Note 7. Property Held for Sale: There were no transactions or 
balances reported. 

Note 8. Other Financial Resources - Non-Federal: There were 
no transactions or balances reported. 

Note 9. Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net: 

Acquisition 
Value 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Net Book 
Value 

ADP Software $266,392,049 000 $266,392,049 

Total $266,392,049 000 $266,392,049 
••mam•aa••• 

ADP Software is not depreciated by JLSC. I~ is 
depreciated by the agency acquiring the software. JLSC does 
not own land, buildings or equipment. See Notes l.(H) and 
1.(I). 

Note 10. Other Hon-Financial Resources: There were no 
transactions or balances reported. 

Note 11. Leases: No transactions or balances reported. 

Hote 12. Debt: The JLSC reported no debt liability. The 
JLSC's proportionate share of public debt and related expenses 
of the federal government are not included in the financial 
statements. Debt incurred by the federal government and 
related interest are not apportioned to federal agencies. 
Consequently, JLSC's financial statements do not reflect any 
portion of the public debt or interest thereon, nor do the 

These Notes to the Financial Statements of the 
JLSC are an integral part of the statements. See Defense 
Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center transmittal 
memorandum, dated March 4, 1994, for additional information. 
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statements reflect the source of public financing. 

Note 13. Other Punded Liabilitieer There were no transactions 
or balances reported. 

Note 14. Pensions and Other Actuarial Liabilities: This 
business area's civilian employees participate in the Civil 
Service Retirement System (CSRS), Federal Employee Retirement 
System (FERS), and Thrift Savings Plan (TSP), while military 
personnel are covered by the Military Retirement System (MRS).
Additionally, employees and personnel covered by FERS and MRS 
are also covered by Social Security. JLSC finances a portion 
of pension benefits under these retirement systems but does not 
disclose the assets or actuarial data on the accumulated plan
benefits or unfunded liabilities of their employees. Reporting
of these amounts is the responsibility of the Office of 
Personnel Management for CSRS, FERS, and TSP, and DoD for MRS. 

Note 15. Other Unfunded Liabilitiesr There were no 
transactions or balances reported. 

Note 16. Fund Balances: 
Appro-
priated
Elm9!. 

Revolving 
Funds 

Trust 
Funds Total 

A. 	 Unexpended 000 000 000 000 
Appropriations

B. 	 Invested Capital 000 000 000 000 
c. 	 Cumulative 

Results of 
Operations $(12,510,548) 000 000 $(12,510,548)

D. 	 Donations 000 000 000 000 
E. 	 Transfers 000 000 000 000 

F. 	 Total $(12,510,548) 000 000 $(12,510,548)............ 
 --=•=•s••• 

JLSC did not report unexpended appropriations, invested 
capital, donations or transfers. Cumulative results of 
operations for the JLSC fund represent the excess of expenses 
over revenues since fund inception. JLSC had a cumulative 
results of operations in FY 92 of $2,804,372. This was related 

These Notes to the Financial Statements of the 
JLSC are an integral part of the statements. See Defense 
Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center transmittal 
memorandum, dated March 4, 1994, far additional information. 
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to revenue generated by the receipt of $10,100,000 in 
reimbursable MIPRs provided by the Uniformed Services and DLA 
as a one-time start-up cost. 

In FY 93 and subsequent years, JLSC will have negative
results of operations due to the nature of its mission. The 
JLSC does not provide goods or services for which i~ is 
routinely reimbursed. Rather, JLSC's operating and capital 
costs will be reimbursed to the DBOF when depreciation 
commences on software projects managed by the JLSC. 

Rote 17. Future Funding Requirements: No transactions or 
balances reported. 

Rote 18. Taxes1 No transactions or balances reported. 

Rote 19. Other Revenue and Financing Sources: No transactions 
or balances reported. 

Rote 20. Program or Operating Expenses: No transactions or 
balances reported. 

Rote 21. Cost of Goods Soldt 

A. Cost of Services Sold 

(l) Beginning Work-in-Process 000 
(2) Plus: Operating Expenses $29,637,640 
(3) Minus& Bnding Work-in-Process 000 
(41 Minus: Completed Work for Activity

Retention 000 
Cost of Services Sold $29,637,640 

B. This is an increase of $22,342,012 over FY 92's total of 
$7,295,628. The reason for this increase is that the JLSC was 
in existence for only one-half year in FY 92 and for an entire 
year in FY 93. Since the JLSC was not established until March 
1992, FY 92 personnel and administrative costs were very low 
because few employees were on board initially. These costs 
increased in FY 93 as additional staff was brought on board. 

Rote 22. Other Expenses: There were no transactions or 
balances reported. 

These Notes to the Financial Statements of the 
JLSC are an integral part of the statements. See Defense 
Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center transmittal 
memorandum, dated March 4, 1994, for additional information. 
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Note 23. Extraordinary Item• and Prior Period Ad1ustments: 
There were no adjustments made to the financial statements. 

Note 24. Transfers <and Donations>s Equity transfers amounted 
to $14,287,287. 

Note 25. Other Statement of Financial Position Notes: 

A. The Accounts Receivable, Federal, balance as of 
September 30, 1993 is $404,736; a decrease $7,262,421 from FY 
92. The $404,736 represents the outstandinq portion of the 

$10,100,000 received from the Uniformed Services and DLA as 

start-up cost for the JLSC in FY 92. The JLSC had no 

additional accounts receivables in FY 93. 


B. The Accrued Payroll and Benefits balance of $2,457,000 is 
for compensation for military personnel assigned to the JLSC. 

Note 26. Other Statement of Operations Notass Revenues of 
$35,434 reflected in the Sales of Goods, Intraqovernmental, are 
a duplicate payment received from DLA on its share of the 
$10,100,000 in FY 92 start-up costs for JLSC. The error is not 
material enough to amend the PY 93 financial statementp; this 
error will be corrected in PY 94. 

Note 27. Statement of Budget apd Actual gxpanses Hotass 

A. Resources: The balance of $457,874,408 is in agreement
with the September 30, 1993 DD Fo%111 1176, line 3. 

B. Obligations: The balance of $440,179,374 is in agreement
with the September 30, 1993 DD Form 1176, line 7. 

c. Expended Appropriations, Direct: The balance of 
$282,086,708 is in agreement with the DD Form 1176, line 16. 

These Notes to the Financial Sta.tements of the 
JLSC are an integral part of the statements. See Defense 
Finance and Accounting Service - Denver Center transmittal 
memorandum, dated March 4, 1994, for additional information. 
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Audit Team Members 

Shelton R. Young 
Charles F. Hoeger 
John K. Issel 
Marvin T. Rohr 


	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



